AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION

November 21, 2022 -
7 P.M. |

Parchment City Commission
Mayor Robert D. Britigan 111

Vice Mayor Thomas Jordan Commissioner Holly Evans

Commissioner Tammy Cooper Commissioner Robin Madaras

Commissioner Doug Fooy Commissioner Michael Conner
Officers

City Manager Nancy R. Stoddard

City Attorney Robert Soltis

City Treasurer/Clerk Shannon Stutz
1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll Call

4. Approval of Minutes
From the City Commission Meeting of November 7, 2022

5. Additions/Changes to the Agenda - Approval

6. Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda
If you wish to comment regarding items ON the agenda, please follow the format below:
o State your name and address for the records
o You are allowed up to 5 minutes for your comments
e Please let us know if you require special accommodations by notifying the Clerk

i
|



10.

11.

12.

13.

* Reminder: You will be making a statement, without discussion from the

Commission. You are always welcome to make an appointment with the City

Manager to further discuss your comments.

Consent Agenda
Items on the consent agenda will be dealt with one vote by the City Commission
unless a Commissioner requests an item be dealt with individually.
Motion to RECEIVE OR APPROVE as indicated:
1. Warrant No. 1477 — action
il. Credit Card Statement for October 2022 — action
iii. Financial Statement for October 2022 - action
iv. KATS Technical Committee Meeting Minutes October 13, 2022 - receive
Unfinished Business
New Business

A. Resolution 2022-09 — Local Support for DNR Projects - action
B. Kalamazoo Valley Intergovernmental Ambulance Agreement — action

Citizen Comments — Items ON or OFF the Agenda

Persons wishing to comment on items that are on/off the agenda are instructed to
please follow the same format as Citizen Comments for items on the agenda.
Mayor and Commissioner Comments

City Manager Comments

Adjournment



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION HELD ON
MONDAY NOVEMBER 7, 2022.

Call to order

Mayor Britigan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. The Mayor led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call.

Present; Mayor Britigan, Vice Mayor Jordan, Commissioners Conner, Cooper, Evans, Fooy, and Madaras. City
Manager Stoddard, Attorney Soltis, Treasurer/Clerk Stutz.

Absent; None.

Minutes

Moved by Commissioner Cooper, supported by Commissioner Conner to approve the minutes of the Qctober 17, 2022
Regular meeting. Motion Carried,

Additions or changes to the agenda. _
None. Moved by Commissioner Madaras supported by Commissioner Fooy to approve the agenda as presented, Motion
Carried.

Citizen Comments — Iterns ON the Agenda

None.
Consent Agenda
A, Questions by Commissioners were answered regarding specific iters. Moved by Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by

Commissioner Madaras to receive the consent agenda items. Motion Carried.

Unfinished Business

Releaf Program, tabled from Sept. 19, 2022. Mayor Britigan said that this is back on the agenda for an update, and noted that
there may be business reasons that this program may not be best for the city. City Manager Stoddard explained that the
program has been in place for 30 years, so it will likely be available in the future. There are also other tree grants to apply for
— Consumers Energy and the Urban Forestry grant are both groups that use nurseries that guarantee the trees they plant. The
city is aware of storms and disease, and needs to be wise about where we spend money. In addition, the Parks and Recreation
Committee would like to engage with the community about where to increase the city’s canopy. More discussion took place.
Moved by Commissioner Cooper, supported by Commissioner Fooy to include this in the city’s budget discussion for next
year with collaboration from the Parks/Rec Commuittee. Motion Carried.

New Business

A. Proposed changes to the City of Parchment General Employee Manual - action, City Manager Stoddard explained
that she and department heads have been in the process of figuring out a succession plan for all employees, noting that
several employees are close to retirement. As such, she has been going over the employee manual and noted some points that
need updating, and possibly change, in order to attract good talent. She presented a draft; discussion ensued. Moved by
Commissioner Coopet, supported by Commissioner Madaras to approve the increase in longevity pay to $50 per vear as
presented. Motion Carried. Moved by Commissioner Cooper, supported by Commissioner Evans to table the remaining
items for further review. Motion Carried,

B. Traffic Tech Services contract - action. City Manager Stoddard explained that the city needs approval from the
commission in order to be eligible for KATS money; she went on to say that the consultant didn’t want to do any counts until
the new trucking signs had been up for about two weeks. This data will help in establishing the best truck routes, stop lines,
and traffic flow. Moved by Commissioner Fooy, supported by Commissioner Madaras to approve the coniract with Traffic
Tech Services not to exceed $5000, and authorize the City Manager to execute all documents related to this action. Roll call
vote was as follows:

Avyes: Britigan, Conner, Cooper, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.
Absent: None.
Abstain; None.

Motion Carried 7-0.

C. Leaf Collection Ordinance — discussion. City Manager Stoddard noted that what’s written in the ordinance and what
is now the practice of the DPW are not exactly aligned - part of it is due to equipment, part of it is just out of date. She
mentioned it makes it difficult to know when and what to enforce. Discussion among the commissioners continued. The City




Minutes of the November 7, 2022 City of Parchment Commission Page 2 of 2

10.

11.

12.

Manager noted that this is not a “huge” issue, and that there’s time to make any changes, as well as wanting to update several
ordinances at once to keep costs down.,

Citizen Comments
None.

Mayor and Commissioner Comments
Commissioner Fooy said remembering back to grade school, he learned that we need trees to give us oxygen; therefore the :
city needs to plant more trees no matter the cost of maintaining them, He then encouraged everyone to “be a good neighbor”. !

Mayor Britigan reminded commissioners of their invitation to MTA for local elected officials. He then referenced a letter
Representative Upton wrote to the current Postmaster General, Louis DeJoy. The Mayor also reminded everyone to vote
tomorrow here at City Hall, polls open at 7 am.

City Manager Comments/Reports
City Manager Stoddard invited anyone who has questions or concerns to call and discuss them with her.

Adjournment
There being no further business to come before the Commission, it was moved by Commissioner Cooper and supported by
all to adjourn the meeting at 8:58 p.m.

Shannon Stutz, City Clerk




City of Parchment

Check Register Report
Warrant 1477

Check Check Date Vendor Name Description Amount
37311 11/14/2022 ASPHALT RESTORATION, INC CRACK SEALING-CITY HALL, RIVERVIEW, PARC £,684.80
37312 11/14/2022 COMPANION LIFE LIFE & AD&D INS - NOVEMBER LIFC3712 102.97
37313 11/14/2022 CONSUMERS ENERGY ACCT #: 1704 3509 CITY HALL 4,955.54
37314 11/14/2022 voID 0.00 v
37315 11/14/2022 VCID 0.00 Vv
37316 11/14/2022 DERIC JORDAN ELECTION - NOVEMBER 8, 2022 160.00
37317 11/14/2022 ESPER ELECTRIC, LTD. REPURPOSED WATER TREATMENT BLDG - ELECTR 4,234.00
37318 11/14/2022 FORD, KRIEKARD, SOLTIS & WISE GENERAL MATTERS - OCTOBER 1,225.00

Gen'l $525.00 Police $700.00 !
3731¢ 11/14/2022 JEANNE DRENTH ELECTION - NOVEMBER 8, 2022 160.00 4
37320 11/14/2022 KAL CO HEALTH & COMMUNITY SERV HHW - SEPTEMBER 51.35
37321 11/14/2022 KALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHCR PROP MAINT - 507 N RIVERVIEW #4 100.00
37322 11/14/2022 KALAMAZOO CITY TREASURER FINAL BILLS FOR SEASON 375.85
37323 11/14/2022 KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP POLICE/FIRE SERVICES CONTRACT - NOVEMBER 42,259.50

Pol $36,684.50 Fire $5575.00
37324 11/14/2022 KATS KATS MEMBERSH!P DUES - 10/01/2022-0%/30/ 60.00
37325 11/14/2022 KIRK STREHLOW ELECTION - NOVEMBER 8, 2022 160.00
37326 11/14/2022 MARY KNECHTEL ELECTION - NCVEMBER 8, 2022 160.00
37327 11/14/2022 MICHELLE STREHLOW ELECTION - NOVEMBER §, 2022 160.00
37328 11/14/2022 MOLLY ANDREWS ELECTION - NOVEMBER 8, 2022 160.00
373289 11/14/2022 NANCY STODDARD ZOOM - ON LINE MEETING PLATFORM 15.89
37330 11/14/2022 PREIN & NEWHOF PROIECTS - TO 10/28/22 24,819.30

CIP $77.00, Sanitary $20,079.80, Trestle $4662.50
37331 11/14/2022 RALPH HERRICK ELECTION - NOVEEMBER 8, 2022 160.00
37332 11/14/2022 REPUBLIC SERVICES #2492 DPW - NOVEMBER - ACCT #3-0248-1048811 10,068.63
37333 11/14/2022 ROSALIND STUTZ ELECTION - NOVEMBER 8, 2022 160.00
37334 11/14/2022 SBAM PLAN EMPLOYEE INSURANCE - DECEMBER 2022 SBAM 11,817.07
37335 11/14/2022 SCOT HENDERSON ELECTION - NOVEMBER 8, 2022 160.00
37336 11/14/2022 SEVERANCE ELECTRIC CO INC TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE - OCTOBER 120.00
37337 11/14/2022 SHERRY HORROCKS REFUND GF FOIA DEPCSIT 46,73
37338 11/14/2022 SQUTHWEST MICHIGAN PLANNING COMMISS  KALAMAZOO RIVER URBAN WILDLIFE CORRIDOR 11,660.00
37339 11/14/2022 STEPHANIE GRATHWOL ELECTION - NOVEMBER 8§, 2022 160.00
37340 11/14/2022 THRUN LAW FIRM P.C. PREPARE UTILITY EASEMENTS 795.80




Page2of 4

Account Number: J000C 500K 000K 1546
Statement Closing Date: 10/26/22

Credits Purchases

Total Activity

Name and Account Number Credit Limit Cash Advances

JIM DUBY

YUK HOOKK XXXX 1892 $3,000 50,00 $54.90 $0.00 $54.90
CAMRON J BOEKHOVEN

KXXK XXRK XXXX 9114 $3,000 $0.00 $1,638.95 $0.00 $1,638.06
TY JWOLTHUIS

K000 XXX XXXX 7674 $3,000 $.00 $1,985.62 $0.00 $1,986.62
SHANNON STUTZ

KOO0 KO XXXK 9126 $5,000 $0.00 $1,586,82 $0.00 $1,586.82

PHIL WOLTHUIS Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Tofal Activity'
OO0 OO XXX 1793 $5,000 $0.00 $2,606.02 $0.00 $2599.02
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number Transactlon Description - VCN Amount
09728 09/27 B8545491227090001B755910 18T AYD CORP 847 622-0007 IL $333.23
09/29 09/28 75500592271900011300023 MARTIN 8PRING & DRIVE KALAMAZOO MI $2 D75.60
10414 1013 02305372267000606881689 TRACTOR-SUPPLY-CO #034 PLAINWELL Mi $190.79
‘ BILL CAHILL Credit Limit Credits Purchases Gash Advances Total Activity |
FOOOK XK XXXX 1861 $5.000 $0.00 $391,05 $0.00 $391,05
Post Date Tran Date  Raferencs Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
1012 10110 02305572284100128519440 MENARDS KALAMAZOQ EAST COMSTOCK TOWN M| $50.54
10/14 10/12 86179242286700609008804 ONE WAY PRODUCTS KALAMAZOO MI 141.25
10/20 1019 55436872262272929831329 RATHGCO SAFETY SUPPLY [ PORTAGE MI 160.26
‘ JiM DUBY Credit Limit Cradits Purchases Cash Advances ‘Total Activity
KK 00K XXX 1892 $3,000 $0.00 $54.90 $0.00 $84.90
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number T ian D iption VCN Amount
10/06 10/05 55500362278200792800015 EXTREME PCWER EQUIPMEN PARCHMENT MI $19.96
1610 10/07 0123053722810006557120971 TRAGTOR SUPPLY #1272 KALAMAZOC MI $19.95
10/26 10/25 02305372299000504772247 TRACTOR SUPPLY #1272 KALAMAZOOC M| $14.99
CAMRCN J BCEKHGVEN Credit L.imit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
KRXK XXX 9114 $3.000 $0.00 $1,638.95 $0.00 $1,638.85
Post Date Tran Date  Raference Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
10/12 1011 75600592284500012200028 MARTIN SPRING & DRIVE KALAMAZOO Ml 445.00
10/13 1011 85179242285980005540920 STEENSMA LAWN AND POWE KALAMAZOO M! 563,64
10414 10113 023053722870006065891808 TRACTOR SUPPLY #1272 KALAMAZOO M| 02,96
10/14 1013 {02305372287000606891971 TRAGCTOR SUPPLY #1272 KALAMAZGO M| $119.99
10/20 1018 05314812293500176543988 LEADERS MARINE KALAMAZCO MI 65.99
10/21 10/13 8517824226398000664 1001 STEENSMA LAWN AND POWE PLAINWELL M 16.51
10421 10/20 55453702294042000028724 ADVANCE AUTO PARTS #17 KALAMAZOO Mi $35.04
10/21 10/19 §5178242283880005540961 STEENSMA LAWN AND POWE KALAMAZ $191.85
10/24 10/23 5b43286228620615444B847C AMZN MKTP US"HSZLW2CHE2 AMZN. COM,’BILL WA $107.97

(transactions continued cn next page)}

00020000 - 000074 - G001 - 0002 - 2



Page 3 of 4

Actount Number: XXXX XXXO0( 00X 1546
Statemnant Closing Date: 10/26/22

TY J WOLTHUIS Credit LImit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
XXX KXAX XXKK 76874 $3,000 $0.0¢ $1,988.62 $6.00 $1,086.62
Fost Date Tran Date  Reference Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
09/28 0g9/27 02305372271000636724307 TRAGTCR SUPPLY #1272 KALAMAZOO MI $199.26
1004 10/03 02305372278300300935438 POMPS TIRE 217 KALAMAZCO M) $1,730.76
1025 10/24 55506202267091845000294 MIDTOWN ACE HARDWARE KALAMAZOO MI $46.60
SHANNON 5TUTZ Cradlt Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity '
KOO XKAX XXXX 9126 $5,000 $0,00 $1,586.82 $0.00 $1.586.82
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
09/28 09/28 55432862271208075820106 SPECTRUM 885-707-7328 MO $119.98
10405 10/03 85140512277900012300011 GORNERSTONE CFFICE SYS AVALENCE@CORN M| $232.74
10110 10407 827111622800000086885611 PIXELVINE FREEPORT Mi $89.75
101 10/10 55500362283726857562947 MARANA GROUP 8006533121 MI $3ir.2z
10/14 10113 427111622860000068114275 PIXELVINE FREEPORT M| $76.00
10M7 10/14 05410192287105125847852 QUILL CORPORATION 800-982-3400 SC $69.99
1017 10/15 §2712612289000000658135 CORPORATE TECHNCLOGIES 7018934056 MN 3436.53
10/20 10/19 05410192292165176501510 QUILL CORPORATION 800-982-3400 3C $95.64
10/26 10/26 55432862208205996128480 SPECTRUM 855-707-7328 MO $149.97



00’0012 1.°6 00'086°T 00°0 00 0T 00°00T‘2C so1Tddng sourusiuten 3 atedey 000°GLL-002-T0T
000002 GZ°82ZT (L6°¥9G) 00°02¢ L6 #95°C 00000 ‘e soTTddng Butiexsdo 0007 0%L-002-T0T
00006 L BZ 9T £6°ET9'9 00°8L L0°98Z°T 007006 ‘L abeasodg 000 0EL-00Z-TO0T
00°008°6 F6°90T (00" 089) 00°0 00 08% 0T Q000876 JTIeusd JUSWRITISY WWOI 000 PZL-00C-TO0T
0B700F“‘E LB GZ 8L°9LL°T 92" 28T FAA ¥A* 00°00% ‘2T SITDTPIR 000" ZEL-00Z-T0T
00°00L 000 00"00L 00°0 00°0 00 00L uoTiesusduo) s,I94I0M 000 0ZL-002-T0T
00000702 £TLO GO E€LG'D 18°¥81°¢ GE'9ZF LT 00 0C0 ‘02 UoTSUSg 000 8TL-00Z~TO0T
000007 FETTOT  (g29-€S) 25 SET Z9'ES0°F 00 000°F aTqIIoNpag 20UBINSUT T00'9TL-002-T0T
00 000’89 Z6°LT Z5'S10°67% ZT 9FL ¥ BF'¥8B6 ‘8T 00 00089 9DUBINSUL SITT/Teltdson G00°9TL-002-10T
0000601 8€° 52 LT GEB'L 90159 £8°'%52°Z 0000501 Ajransesg feroog 000" GTL-002-T0T
00°000"8% £6°LT 66 £8L°%¢E 91 1%0°¢E 10°9TZ €T 00 000°8% Swty 3aed - TIoIARg 000 E0L-00Z-T0T
00°000'E2T Y082 £1'906°88 ¥0'TF9 '8 LB E6F FE 00°000°€TT SUTL TInd - IToZA®g 000" Z0L-002-T0T
UOTIRIJSTUTURY - 0z Jdeg
00°008°1¢ SLT 9% 0L PE6°9T 0%"9ZL L 0£7598"p1 00"00B’IE saTieTsTbeT - 00T 1ded Telod
00°00€ 000 00°00¢ 000 00" 0 00°00€ STIOBUE[SDSTH 000" GG6-00T-T0T
00°000°S 6L°8 SFT095°p 000 GG BEY 00" 000°s butysTIgng 8 HBurjutiad 000 006-00T-TOT
0070002 000 0070002 0070 000 00-po0’e UOTINGTIIUCD DUTTTRSSEM 100 088-00T-TOT
00°000°T 00° 8¢ 00" 024 00°52 00 08€ 00°000°T uoTIoword AjTUnuuIe) 000 088-00T-TOT
00 005°T b ve 8L°CET'T 000 zz'99f 00°008°T seng 3 sdTYSISCUSK 000 0E£8~00T-T0T
00 0002t 0z-08 00°9LE‘E 00°808°9 007296 007000721 TATaG TENJORI3UO)/TPUCISSSI0N] 0007 008-00T~T0T
00004 E0"€0T  (12°12) TS L61 12 TEL 00" Q0L se11ddng buriexadp 000 0PL-00T-TOT
o-ooe 6L TT £F9LT 69°8 Lsge 00- 00z aTesTPaR 000" CZL—~00T-TOT
00082 0070 00'05¢ 000 000 00 0%z uor3iesuaduo) §,I9YICH 000" 0ZL=-00T-TOT
007088 S8°TT 5T 6FL DE"LE GLT00T 00°0%8 Aatanoeg TeTOOS 000" STL-00T-TOT
00°000°8 8C°TF 00063 "% 007009 00T 0TE’E 00 0008 SWIL 3daed - [[RZA2d 000 E0L-001-T0T
- satTleIsThsT - gpT 3deq
ssan)Tpusdxy
00 008°LSG T 68 ZL G8*IZ0'%Z¥ DT €E5 7928 ST 0E676ET T 00"2G56°£95°T SENNIATT TYIOL
00°008°LSG T 687 2L G587 120 °'%2% 0T ££57922 ST 0E66ET'T 00°2S67€9S T 000 3adsqg tTe3oL
00°00F's T10°6€ 25 E6z’c 000 8% 9072 00°00F% ‘S s8oInes burourul ISYl0 000" S69-000-T0T
00°00% ‘LT 09°99 FETI8’S 99°9¢2 99°88G°TT 00" 00F ‘LT SNCRUBRT [3DSTH 000" ¥69-000-T0T
000007012 000 0070007012 0070 0G0 00000012 PEAUISAQ TI0F JUSWSSANCUTIY 000°08%-000-T0T
007009 % £z L AT A 96°99 6L°CEE 007009 % SHILU SHAUL UO 3E€3AIJUL 000" ¥25-000-T0T
007006 7L TF 61 LOTFF0’9 68°FLT £6 657 T 00005 ‘L SSUTI OTIIRIL 000°225-000-T0T
007005 0o o 007004 000 000 00 00¢ paxepudy S93TAIRE JI0F sabaeys 000 2E9-000-TOT
007000202 YA 00" TT9 k1T 00 259 'F¥ 00 6BELE 007000 ‘z0¢ ®el §3TBS 21B1§ 000°5LE-000-TOT
000 00°00T (2L LLZ P6) ZLULLE WG TLTLLT'¥E 000 QURTd I21BM -~ 1URIDH 23218 000 F%S-000-10T
a0 o 00°0 00 ZST‘% 000 000 00°ZST'9 s3ueRl9 TBIAPIF Q00" T¥S-000-TOT
00°0 00°00T {00°8ET’rE) 000 00°BET'LZ Q00 sjueiy) =3e3g 000 0%5-000-TOT
00 000 °'9€T LL¥E FETOTI GL 6F " FS¥ '0E 91°688°09 00°00079¢€T SUOT}DTTOD DISBM PTTOS 000 FS7-000-TCT
0o ooL‘z 0070 0oTooL’e 00°0 000 00°00L T se3i UOTIBSIDAY 000" €5%-000-T0T
00 00L ST 6%'9¢ 65T0FSTT 0070 TP 6GT°% Q0 Q0L ST 5984 UOTSTARTJED 000 Z8%-000-T0T
00 000°ST 15-0z2 00°€Z6 ‘1T £9°CST 00"LL0’E 00°000°ST 5994 pUBR SEUIDTT 000 TS¥-000-TOT
00 00E ‘62 89°88 T8 LIE'E 2970682 6T 286762 00°00€ 62 29 UOTIDRTTCD 3T 000" 8F¥—~000-TOT
00 000°¢€ 9619 LOTTPT T 64.°80E £6°8S8'T 00 000t soxeL uo AlTeusd 000" S¥¥F-000-TOT
00000 CRT S6°LE 9Z°698'98 vLTOET'ES ¥LOOET €S 00 000 ‘0FT ¥Rl 2xvy§ geis A3Tunumo) TeooT] 000" L¥F-000~-TOT
007002’ £9°T0T  (¥B"GE) 00°0 ¥8°682°¢C 0000 Z SOTATTTORI TRTIALSNPUT — S2XP] 0007 G0F-000-T0T
000057994 TL 66 0L T6T1°2 [1[oRdv] 0£°80€°79/ 00006 ‘994 snusAsy XEL 000 F0P-000-TOT
000 2d=d
SoanUanayd
QMR IYdHENED - TOT pung
LE5and agsn (FIONdY) WHON (8DEA) ¥ONI {(WHHONDY) FE0N 139009 JHEANIRY NOILdI¥DSHA AAFHAN 19
TYNIDIEO 9449 % ADNYIYE TZ/TE/0T HINOW zz0Z/1£/01 £€7-2202
£7-Z20% ATILTIYAY ¥0d ALIALLDY ADNYIVE (LK
CZ0Z/TE/OT ONIANE JOIME4 JusSuyDIBg dgd
S8g sIxss]
TT/1 rabeg INY dANIAET WA G220 2¢<¢0<C/LT/TT

INIKH2YYd A0 ALID 904 I¥OdEY HA¥E0LIANTdYH



00 00Z’s 9L°LE 9L°€0T'¢5 G8 BEE ¥Z 960°¢ a0°00Z 8 so11ddng sourusjuTey ¥ ITtedsy 000" SLL-0FF—-TOT
0C 00F ‘% Z9LL 89 %86 82°G00°T TETSIF’E Q0" 00% ‘% TIC ? SUTTOSED 000 9% L—0FF-T0T
00°005°¢ 9L°1T L0967 ‘2 (50°9} £6°CY 000052 se1Tddng Hurtirrado 000 0%L-0FF-T0T
00 08F‘T 88°8¢ 15°¥06 £S5 6ET G6F°GLS 00°08% ‘T 8ILOTPOH 000" CZL~0FF-T0T
00700%°¢€ 000 00°009‘¢ ap° 0 0070 00 009 ‘€ uctiesuaduio) $,I9)I0M 000" 0EZL-0FF~T0T
00°00S'TF Z6°Fe TS°65T°1€ TL'2LY ‘T 6% 0FE’0T 00°00G'T¥ UCTEUSJ 000" 8TL-0FF~TOT
00°00%’T Qo0 00°00F ‘2 000 007G 00007 ‘2 STUTIOUPSQ 80UEBINSUT 100 9TL-0F%~-TOT
00 000 7% £e ze SE PLL'EZ PSTFOGE S0°GZZ'FT 00°0007%¥ 80UeINSUl SI T/ Te3Tds0H 000 9TL-0FF-TOT
00 00E’e L0 6E L5 8E87E 98°'9665 EF T9% ‘T 007 00g’y Ajranseg feroog GO0 STL-0FF-TOT
0070007201 6L 6T 8T°8T9 ‘T TE'L6T L Z28° 18808 007000°Z0T Surty ITNg - ToTA®g 000" Z0L-0F7-T0T
- S®OTAISS OTITONd - QF% 3deq
00°00T ‘€21 FOTEE 9T LZF’Z8 FST90T ¥8TZL9 0% 0000t ’EeT 9ITd - sgg 3deg TEIOL
00 000 ST ES'¥Z 00 0ZE'TT 000 00°089°¢ 00°000°ST Teaitden 000°0L6-9€E-T0T
0oToceo ot 000 00 000 0T 000 00" o 00°000°0T sIojoeIjued jutey 3 ITedey 000 0EE-9€E~T0T
0oTooL‘e 5602 GETFET'C 7591 §9°595 00°00L°2Z SaTITTTIN 000°0Z6~-9E£E-TOT
00 000°FT 1£°08 00*95L'¢g a0°0 00°FFZ'IT 00"000 %1 spuog ¥ 20URINSUT 000 0T6-98E-T0T
00°002°% G5 ¢E 84°06L°2 00°06 CTGOFT 00 00Z ‘% SUOTIEI TUNWIC]) 000" 0G8~9EE-TOT
00°000°0L 98" 1¢ 0O 00L LY 000 00°00£°2Z 00000 0L TAZES TERJORIZUOD/TRUCTES3IOIT 000" 008-9E€E-T0T
00'00T 000 00 00T 00°0 0D0*o 00" 00T setTddng Ajsgeg 000 08L-8EE-TOT
00 000°T SZT0FT  (GF Z0F) 000 SHTC0F T 00°000°'T ss17ddng soueusjuter 3 atedsy 000 GLL-8EE-TOT
o000t ST L B 826 000 25 TL 00000t TIO % 8ulfosel 000 9%PL~2€E-T0T
00°00T’S 0070 00" 001’5 oo-g 000 00°00T°S ss11ddng butjexado 000" QFL-BEE-TOT
2ITId - 9g¢ zdeg
00" FTL LT 0T €E 96" TTS'66€ 0Z" 198 ¥0°20Z'871 00" FTL LYY BOTTOd - 00f 1dsd TRIOL
00 FPIZ'OFF EL'ELC 00 9LY ‘e 00°0 00 BEL'9FT 00" 912 0%% ‘AZ9S [BNIDBIIUC)/TRUCISSRIOIJ 000" 008-00E-T0T
007 00T ZL 6T 8208 08°1T ZL 6T 007001 SIBDTPRH 000" 2ZL-00E-T0T
00009 S0°FT 89°CTG 09 6% ZE P8 00" 009 AjTanoes TeTOCS 000" STL-00E-TOT
00°008°9 0002 00 0%F ‘S 00°008 00098t 00°008°9 awri 31ed - JIoxAed 000 E0L-00E-TOT
20TTod - 00g 3deq
000086z 0Z°6T GZ'9%8°02 G 9EB'T GLTES6'F 00°008°'s2 s@0TAadag TEBaT - Tz 3deq Tm=3eln
00700876 9% 00°SFE‘E 057 L8 00°S5% 000086 SI233RN SVTLOd-ASULI0IFY 000 Z08-0TZ~-T0T
00 Q00 9T Z1°8¢ SZ'T10S’TT GLT8FLT SLB6F F CoT000°9T Tezousd - Asurolly 000 T08-0TZ-T0T
ga0TAXDg TRDOT - 017 1deqa
00°099 "g¥¢C 8% 0% FETSTE ‘90T 96 IS €T 99 FPEE OVT 007089 "9FE UOTIRIISTUTURY - (0¢ Fded Telol
007000 L £F 9%Z  {00°0SZ 0T} 00°0 00052 LT 00'000°L Teatded 000" 0L6-002-10T
0070562 89°LG Q0" 8¥Z°T 000 opcoL't 0070567 g1o3o0eI3u0) " JuTel 3 ITedey 000 0E6-002-T0T
00°00%'¥ 6L"62 €T°680°E 18" 8%T LBUOTE'T 00°00%“F SOTATTTI Q007 026-002-T0T
00 00T ‘L EZ°6L D0°SLT T 00°0 00°S2%°5 00700T°L SPUOY # SOUBANSUT 000" 016-002-T0T
oC 0002 2711 00°SLL'T 000 00" GZE 00°000°2 butysTrTUang % HUTIUTId 0007 006-002~T0T
00 008" 66° 18 S1°%88 L8 ZF S8 GTE 007007 burutexy % £8IN3TISUT 000" 098-00Z-T0T
potoce“L 88°9F% 90°8L87¢ 9G"ZZTL F6LeR ' 00°00g ‘L SUOTIED TUNURICD 000°058-002-10T
00°002°T 05°¢ G0 OLT T 05 L 00" 0E 00700271 song ¥ sdlySISCUSH 000" 0ER-Q0Z~-TOT
00700676 T11°8%2 0008879 0052k 00" 0Le 'z 00°00G '8 8801AI95 Ia3nduc) 000°S0R-00Z-T0T
007 008"g 26 FOT  (8S'0LE) (5L°¥6L"8) 88 0LL’S 00 005°S "aTes [BNQ0BRIAZUOD/ TRUOTISSDI0Ad 000 008-00Z-T0T
. ’ saInyTpuadxyg
NN TPHINED - TOT pung
IAoang amgsn (FEONdY) WaON (¥0Ed) ¥MINI (WHONEY) WHON LU9nd TIANINTE NOILATEDs4a GIEENAN 1D
TYNTSHTHO 1oad 2 AONYIVE ZZ/TE/0T HINOR Z20C/TE/OT €Z-2202
£2-¢202 ATIVTIVAY H0d ALIAILOV AONYTYS QLA
ZZ0Z/1€/0T DNIANT Q0TdEd uemoIed f4d
$55 1I88N
I1/2 robeg INHAHDEYd A0 ARID ¥0d JH0dHAY TANLIANTAXH dNY AONTAHY Hd GZ2:20 220C/LT/T1



00-90L 91°125°5 (068 GET'CLE) 00°vE8°8E 06"€6076LE 00°8589 SHINLIANEIXE 3 SHNNEAEY J0 LEN
00 ¥60°L5S'T 98°8F SLULST 964 0T"669°LST GZ 9€8°'00L 00 B60LES'T SHANIITNAIXA THLIOL
00 0087LSS T 68°ZL S8°1Z0'%ek 0T ££5'97%2 ST 0E6'6ETT 00" 256°€95°T SHOANTATY 'TYIOL
IONAE TVHENTS - 0T pung
00" F607LSS T 98°8% SLTLSZ'96L 0T1°669°L8T SZ 9E£8°09L 00" ¥60°LG5°T SHANLIANIIKT TYIOL
00°0SG ‘28T 8F"G¥ 89°€£5766 GS6E8°ET Z€°910°%8 00"0557z81 3INJTND B uoTIeLADSY ‘sxard - T5. 3deg TeIOL
00 000’9 000 000009 00°0 0070 0070009 Te3Tde) 000 0L6-T5L-TOT
o0 o00Z'62 06°%T G9°6¥8'FT G695 T GE'0SE’F 00° 002762 SIOIDRIIUOD " JUTEN ¥ ITedey 000" 0E6-TSL-TOT
00"00T L LS BS BT T¥6 ‘2 BT LG9'T Z28°8ST'% 00007 ‘L SSTITTTIN 000" 086-TSL-TOT
00" 00T "L 0054 00°SLL'T 00°0 00°5Z£’S 00 00T ‘L SpUOd % SOUBRANSUT 000 0T6-TSL-TOT
0070 00°00T (0B-"LZ8°1Z) 00°0 08 L2812 000 TATSS TENISBIJUOD/TRPUCTISSSI0Id 000°008-TSL-TOT
007 00% 0070 00°00F 0070 ’ 00°0 00" 00% soTTddng Ajeges 000 08L-TSL-T0T
0O 000ET LETZ¥ AT AL R 75 199 B LOS’S 00°000°€T serrddng eouru2juUTIRK % ateded 000°GLL-TGL-TOT
00" 008°z £6°09 9Z°'S0T'T SLTE6 FL FEIT 0070082 TTO % SUTTOSES 000°9FL-TGL-TOT
007058 £9°Zh 89 L8Y 61°06 (AT 007058 SILDTRON 000" ZZL-TGL-TOT
00°006°¢ 0070 00°005°E 000 00°0 00°008°¢€ uoTiesusdwo] s,Z8¥I0M 0007 02L-TGL~TOT
007000 %2 16°GE SSTTI8E’ST 1779072 SF°8T19 '8 00°'000°%%2 uoTsuad 000" 8TL~TGL-TOT
00°00% ‘T 000 00°00¥% ‘T 000 0G0 00°00F°T BTQTIINPSg SDURINSUT TO0°9TL-TGL-TOT
007005 '%E 96 LT FL°001°0¢ £7°80T°T 98 "BEE'T 0000552 aouernsul 83T17/7e3TdsoH 000 9TL-TSL-T0T
00 00L g 68" TF 6170812 18°58¢€ T8 6FS°T 00°00L g A3TINDSg TeTD0§ 000°STL-TGL-TOT
0G*000'6S GL'CE TE"8LL EE 62°6L279 69 TEZ'S2 Q07000765 swT TInd — TToxkeg 000 Z0L-TSL-T0T
2IN31IND ¥ uorjleniosy ‘siaevd - 1§57 1dag
00" 0 007001 (0T €02 'SeT) 6L°976 02T 0T €02'S61 000 sosuadxy Jueld Jueld I23BM - 146 1deg [elod
000 007007  (00°VLI'9F) Q0 FLT'9F 00" LT 9% 00" 0 Teatde) 000°0L6-T6G-TOT
000 00°00T (L6 TEL} 00’0 L6 TEL 000 SST3TITIA 000" 026-165-10T
00°0 00°00T (6T°%6T‘8BFT) GB 699 'FL 6T F6T 8FT 0070 TAXDS TRNIDRAIVOD/TBUCTSS2I0Id 000°008-T6G-TOT
000 00°00T (¥6°Z0T) ¥6 20T 6201 00" 0 sarrddng burjezedo 000 0PL-TBS-TOT
sesusdxy jueIs 3uepTd Isiem - 166 3dog
00°08% ‘66¢€ ¥FEC 8L 1687692 17 698’82 P2 886 CET 00 08% ‘66E s20TATSE 2TIYUd - 0FF 3ded Te3oL
007000z 00°0 00 0002 00" 0 000 00" 000°2 Te3Tden 000 0LE-0FPF-TOT
00 008 1T 75 %1 8% "980 7071 8€°87F% ZGTETL'T 00°008°TT Sa010eIjUO0) "JUIEH 3 ITedey Q00 0E6-0FF-TOT
00000 ‘62 T¥°0¢g 9€"TRL ‘02 TTFLE T F9°8I8’8 00700062 butiyb1y asoI3g 000°926-0FF—10T
00 00L'8 BE LT £Z°81E'9 SEWLE LLTTBE’'T 00°00L7°8 SRTITTTLN 000" 0Z6-067-T0T
00 000°9 59769 00 TEB'T 00°0 00" 6LT % 00700079 §PUOY 3 SOUBANSUT 000" 0T6-0FF-TOT
00008 00°0 00005 0070 co"0 00°008 UOTIo0WCAd AJTUIMMICT 000 088—0FF-TOT
00'00€ 00°0 00008 00" 0 00" 0 00 00¢€ BuTUTRIL ® $23NITISUT 000 098—0FF-TOT
00TC00°T 66 LY 807028 86°61T 76 BLY 00°000°T SUOTIED TUTIIOD Q00 058-0FP-TOT
000086 00" 0 007006 0070 0070 007006 send 3 sdrysiIoquay 000 0EB-0FF-TOT
00°000°€E 980§ 6L FLY T 6T LBE T8°626°T 0o 000°€E TRIUSY WAOFTUQ 000 GT8-0FF-TOT
007007 “8TT 9L TF 167556789 GZ°0%%°6 E0°FFF 6% 00 00F‘8TT S2bIeYD UWOTISITIOD USTAANY 000°0T8-0%%-10T
007000°T 8505 2T ¥6F 00°SLZ 8L°505 00°000°T “AZR§ TERIDRIJUOD/TRUOISS®I0I] 000 008-0FF-TO0T
007008 00°0 00°005 00°0 00 00°00s se11ddng Aisgeg 000" 08L-0FF~T0T
saanjTouadey
aNad TYEENIS - TQT pund
LAanand qEsn {WIONEY) HION {¥4D3Ea) 9ONI (WIONIY) FRION IEoaNd IaEINAWY NOILITMDSHEA AAIHON TD
TENISTHC 1509 % AINYTED ZT/TE/0T HINOW zZOZT/TE/OT £Z-ce0e
£EZ-220¢ ATV IIVAY oA ALIATLIOV HONYTYE dLA
ZZ0Z/TE/0T DNIANE aold=d FUBUDdRg 2hd
ggs IS8
TL/E ENTWHIEYd A0 ALTID ¥0d I¥O4dEY HYNLIONAdXHA ANV IANIATH HWa GZ2:20 CZ0¢/LT/TT

tebeg



6000076 oo 00°000'6 000 00°0 00°000‘s 3Tes 000 ESL-8LF-20T
00 000°T FLUTE 18° 285 octo BETLTF COT000°T TT0 ¥ SUTTCS®D 000 9FL-BLF-Z0T
00°0ST T9°LET 88°80T 9176 A R 4 007051 STROTPIR 000°ZZL-8LF-Z0T
00°059 00°0 00°059 00°0 0o 00°059 uoTiesusdwe) §,I9HION 000 0ZL-8LF-20T
00°00Z % €V €T go-9tTZ’‘E 95 98¢ Z6°£86 00°002'% uosuag 000 8TL-8LF-E0T
00°08¢ 000 00°05¢g 00" 0 0o°o 007052 9TqIIONPSY SOUBIANSUT TO0"9TL-8LY-202
00"00€’F 8L €Z TS LLZE £9°55¢ 6%°220°T 00005k souviInsUT 2ITT/Te3Tdsol 000 9TL-8LF—202
007009 LZ°62 LE"VEY ST°6E £9°GLT 00009 A3tanoesg TeTOOS 000°ST1L-8LF-202
00"00Z°0T TE° 82 69°ZTE'L €Z°GF9 1£7488°2 00700201 SWTL TI0d - TToIARg 000 Z0L-8LF-Z0T
SDURUSIUTEN I3JUTM - 8.F 3d8Q
00060 ‘e St be 9€°866°%¢ 8T GEF’C 7316078 00°060‘cE S90TAZa8S OTITRIL - G4y 3dsQ Telol
00°00T’ET 1€ %¢ 06°%09°8 9E 6GS1T 0T G6F ¥ 00 00T €T SI0JDRAJUOD ‘ULl ? ITedsy 000" 0E6-SLF-20E
00700572 £Z L 82°6TE"C 000 ZL 08T 00700572 gaTrddng eoueusjuted 3 Itedsy 00D G8LL-GLF-20T
007006 000 007006 000 0G0 00005 ITO % SUTTOSEY 000" 9% L-GLF-20C
007021 9L 12 687 €6 6°9 19z G0 0ET SIBD TIPSR 000" CEL~-5LF-C0Z
00°0FS 000 00" 0%S 0o o 000 00" 0FS uoTiesuadwo) §,I9]ICH 000 0CL-SLF-20¢
00005 ‘¢ 5112 VLTBSL'T 88°LLT 9z 0% L 00°006°¢ UoTSuUa]g 000" 81L-5LF-202
oo-ooeg 00°0 007002 000 00" o 00-00g STATIONPAJ 2OURITSUT TOO 9TL-GLF—20%
007009 ‘¢ 2561 117 L68'C SLTSLT 68°Z0L 007009 ‘¢ souRInSUT 2ITT/Te3Tdsod 000" 9TL-5L%-202
0L 0ES T0°1Z L9°81F z25'6¢ CETTTT 00°0ESG Ajtanoeg TRIDOS 000" STL-5LY-Z0T
00 008’8 65° 12 LL %9979 SLGS8F £2°GER'T 000058 swty [Ind - IToxARg 000" Z0L-5L9-Z02
S9DTAISE DIIIRIL - GLF 1dad
00°09% ‘8¢ 8021 18-gzo‘sz iFA AN 6T LEFE 00 09% ‘82 SOURPUSIUTEH suTiINOd - £o¥ 3d=g Te30%
0070008 00°0 00°000°8 000 00°0 00°0008 2I0328I3U0D " JUTRH ¥ Itedsy Q00" 0€6-E9F-202
007008’ GE'9 S8 €612 16°€8 ST°9¥F1 00 00£‘e sarrddng aourusjutel 3 ITedsy 000" SLL-E9F-202
antoog 00" 0 00" 00€& 0070 (o]eRlo] 00°00¢€ TTO 3 SUTTOSED 000" 9FL-E9F-20E
00°0£T £9°8T 8L°50T 20" L 22 %z 00°0€T aIBRD TIPSR 000°22L-£9F~202
00°0LS 0070 00" 0LS Go-0 000 00°0LE uoTlesuaduo) €, I8 I0M 000 02L-€9%-20%
00009 'S 76702 FT 97682 Z1°T8T 987 E£GL, 007002 ‘¢ uoTsusd 000" 8TL-£9Y—202
0001z 00°0 00°0TC 000 co°o 00°01¢g STATIONPaY SOUBINSUT T00'9TL-£9%-20%
00" 00B‘E 05°8T G6°960°¢C 8L GLT G0 E0L 00°008°‘¢ adurRaAnSUL SITT/TRITdSOH 000" 9TL-E9F-20Z
00065 64781 89°9FF 80°0¢ ZETE0T 007088 Ajranoes TeTOOS 000°STL-E9F-202
00°000‘s 9681 Ty E62'L 6L V6F 6G°90L°T 0070006 SWTL TINd - [IoIABg 000" Z0L-£97-20T
VOUBUIIUTIER S|UTINCey - £€9% 3dag
00000021 9% LB 00 060°ST 00°0SE‘€0T 007066 "F0OT 00°000°02T UOTIDNIISUOD ~ I6F 3deq TBIOL
00°0007021 97" L8 00°050°GT D0 0SE'E0T 007056 ‘F0T 007000021 SIOIDBIJUC) "JUTeH ¥ ZTedsy 000" 0£6-TGF-Z0Z
UOTIDNIJSUOD - T6F 3deg
seaniTpuadxy
007002 '8LY 68 2E 06865 61T ¥STZTHI 0T"T09 ‘8% 00°00Z'8LT SEANIATY TVIOL
00 007 ‘BLT 68°¢€ 06'86G 61T PGTTECHT 0T 160G '86 00°00Z78LT ooo 3dea Teaol
00002 8LT 68°¢¢ 067865 6TT 2R A A 0T° 109 ‘8% 00°00Z“8LT TS 3D9¥ - S3UBIH 83B1E 000" 9%5-000-7Z02
' 000 31dag
SanusaAdyg
aind LEFYLS YOLVW - 207 Pung
LEoandg aEsn (WRIONEY} KHON (d0Ea) ¥MONT (IONEY) HEON LaDAng qAqNIHY NOTIITHISIA HATHAN 1D
TYNIHIEO I90d % AONYIVL ZZ/1€/0T HINOW zTT02/1€/0T £7-2202
£2-2202 ATIVITIEAY H04d ALIAILOY AONYIYd JLA

IT/% :iebeg

¢e0Z/T€/0T SONIANE gOoIddd

INIWHOYYd A0 ALID ¥04d I18904dH8 JUNLIANTAXE dNY dONIATT

JjuawyoIed :gd
§gg :Iesn

Wd SZ:¢0 2T0C/LT/11



{00 0gT‘95) BEPTT £2°0L0°8 (€6 %06 '£6) (€2 06T 75} {00°0ZT“9G) SHINLTANAAXE ¥ SANNIART A0 AN

00 0zL'vee 0% ¢S L9°8ZG'TITT L¥"BZT 80T €E°T6L2ZT 00 02E‘rET SIMNEIONAIXE TYLOL

00°00C ' 8LT 68°2¢ 06 865G '6TT FSTZZFT 0T T09 85 007 00C‘8LT SHARAATY TYLOL

TONNA LETELS 9ODYH - Z0Z PUtld

00 ozE’vEe 0% 25§ L9 BEZSTTIT LT"92T'80T €L 16L722T 00028 ‘¥ET SHENIIANTINT THIOL

00 02% 22 06°¢ 9€°GES 12 Z8°ZBT 79" 98L 00" 0Er ‘2z UOTIBISTUTWDY — ZgF 3d=2g T»30L

00000 ‘02 0070 00°00002 000 000 007000702 PESUIDAQ SATIRIZSTUTWDY 000 096-287-202

0002 0662 0T°%T A 0675 000z SIPDTPOH 000" ZZL-E8F-202

00°'ST 000 Q0°ST 0o ¢ 0070 00°ST uoTiesuaduo) €, I8} I0N 000" 0ZL-Z8F-20T

007008 zg-8e OF*85¢ £T°%¢ 08 TFT 007008 UOTSUS 000" 8TIL-Z8¥-20T

00°0F 00°0 00°0F 0o- g 000 0o 0% aTqrionpsd 22URANSUT TO0"9TL-Z8F-C0C

007028 T8 LE 8- Ege 91 6F 297967 00" 0Zs SDURINSUI ©FTT/Teitdsoly 000°9TL-28¥-20C

00° G4 66 EE T8°6F 09°6 61°5Z 00" 5L A3TInones TeION0S 000" GTL-TBF-20T

0070521 €T e L9°%£8 19°¢h £ETGTY 00°082°T SWTL TTNA - TTodAed 000" Z0L-Z8F-20T

uoTieIlsTUTURY - Z8F 3deq

00°0GE “0E 12 81 1228 % £L7G8T'T 98*L25°% 00 06E‘0€ DOURUDIUTRH JA93UTM - 8.7 3deg Te3oL

sain]Tpuadxy

aNnd ILEEYLS ¥YO0YH - £0Z pundg

Ia9ang agsn {(WMONEY) HE0ON {dodd) MONT (5ONTY)  WHON IA9dnd CEININY NOILIIdosaa MEGHON 19
TYNIDTHO 1oad % ADNYTYL Z¢/TE/0T HINOH ZTOZ/TE/OT £e-ge0e

£2-T202 ATHTIVAY 03 ALIAILDY TDNYIVE ALA

ZZ0Z/T1E/0T ONIANI d0IdEd Juswysled :dd

S88 IesN

TT/6 :abeg LNANHDYYd A0 ALTD ¥04 J90dTd FIAIIANIEAXE dNY JANIATI Wd SZ:20 ZZ0Z/LT/TT



007006 T 69 LT TL B80T 19°26 6T°STV 00°006°T SUITL TTnd - TTOoXABRg 000°Z0L-Z8¥—€0T
UOTIRIASTUTUDY - Z8F 3ded
QuTo0eL'Le 69°6T £8 k¥ 'CE 6L°89T°T L1657 00°00L7LE SDUBUSIUTEW IDJUTM - §.F 3d1DQ TBIOL
000009 000 00°00C ‘9 000 00°0 00° 0069 ITes 000 EGL-8LF-£0T
00 000°T YLUIP 19" €8S 0070 GETLIF Q0000 ‘T 1To ® suT[OsES 000 9%L-8LF-£0T
00 0ST S0 LT £760T Y06 L5 0F 007 0ST SACDTPIH 000 ZgL~BLY—~E0T
007059 0070 007059 00°0 000 00059 ucTieguaduon §,I93ICM 000 0EL-BLF-£0T
00002 F 11762 6L 62T GETEET 19°0L6 00"00Z°% woTsuUsd 000 8TL-8LP-£0T
00° 052 0070 0605 00°0 0070 00°0S% STUTIONPS@ JJUBANSUL T00 9TL-BLF-£0T
00" 00F ‘% ¥8°22 66 FRE‘'E LZ 182 GO'G00°1 00°00% ‘¥ SDURINSUT =ITT/TeaTdsoy 000°9TL-8LF-£0T
00059 99°9¢% 69 9LY F9 8¢ TE ELT 00° 059 Ajtanoeg TeRTDOS 000 GTL-BLF-£0T
00°00F ‘0T 6L LT 9L 'TS§'L 6% "9£9 72 8%8°T 00 00% ‘0T Swty Tind - [[oZhedg 000 C0L-BLY-£0C
SDUPUSIUTEN J33UTM — gLF 3dag
0009962 PLTLT LB LOT'1Z F9°658 €T 255 % 00099 'S¢ §90TAX98 DTFIEIL — GLF 3dsg TElOL
00°009 0cTo 00°009 0G0 00°0 007009 SICIDEAJUOD*JUTER 2 aTedsy 000" 0E6-SLF—EOT
00" 600°s 9T ¥%¢ 06" T6L°E oc-o 0T"80Z°T 0o0T000°’s seTrddng oourusiuTeH 2 rrtedoy 000" GLL-SLF-E0T
00°00S 000 00° 005 00 Q 000 007006 110 # SUITCSED 000°9pPL-SLF-E0T
00°0FT FZ 81 LE FTT 8L°9 £6°52 00°0FT SIRDTHOH 000 22L-GLP-E0T
00°029 0070 00° 022 000 000 007029 uoTiesusduo) s,I23I0M 000 0ZL-GLP-E02
00°000°F 6T°8T IR AR AR AR Z¥TSLT €L LZL 00°000°% TOTEUSJ 000 8TL-5LF-E0C
00 0%e 0070 007052 00°0 000" 00°052 STYTIoNPSg SOURINSUIL T00°9TL-GLF-£0T
00°0ST % 26791 67 poF’E 8E TLT 157689 00°0ST ‘% aoueansul 2317/ Te3TdsoH 000 9TL-SLF-E0Z
007009 LT 8T T0 T6F 606z 667801 00008 AjTInDeg TRIVOS 000 STL-GLF-E02Z
0000876 €L BT EL°E0078 907 LLY LZTO6LT 00°008°6 SWTL TTnd — TToIA®Rd 000°Z0L-SLH-£02Z
S80TAIDE STIJFRIL - GLF 2adag
00" 006’62 SO°LT 0Z°T08 "¥¢ 9L°ZLE 08°860°S 00° 006762 SOURUSIUTEH 2UTINCY — £9% 3dag Telel
00" 00% ‘S 1v" LT 00'0Z6°% 000 00 08% 1T 00°00% 7“5 §1030BI7U0D " JUTEH 3 ITzdsy 000 0E6-E5F-E07
00°00% '€ 0E°¥ £g-gsz’e Z6°£8 LT79%T Q0" 00% € seTTddng soueusjuieN 3 Iredsy 000 SLL-E9F-E0%
00°00€ 60°0 00 00E 000 000 00°00¢ 1T0 3 suTioSES 000 9%L—-£9F-E0%
00°0S§T 9L LT £ €21 0" L 79792 007051 2IBD TP 000 ZZL-E9F-E0T
007059 0070 00° 059 000 000 007049 UOT}RSULdUO]) §,I9{I0M 000" 0EL-E9F €02
00 002'¥ 6 LT PL 9FF'E ET"T8T 98 E5L 007002 ¥ uotsuad 000 8TL-€£9F-£0T
00" 05E 00°0 00°06E 0070 000 0008 21qTIonpag SOURINEUT TO0 9TL-ESF-£0T
00" 00F‘F B6°GT 56'969°¢ LLTGLT S0TEnL Q0" 00% ‘¥ 2DURINSUT SITTF/TeITds0H 000 9TL-£8F-€0Z
00" 059 TS LT Tz 9€5 80°0¢ 6L ETIT 007059 AaTanosg TeTOOCS 000 STL-€9F-£02
00 005 0T 98" LT TL 9298 I8 ¥6% 6T GLBT 00°00570T awTy TTnd - TIoxA=g 000 Z0L-E9F%-£0T
SOURURSIUTRE SUTINCYH — £9F 3dad
goInITpUusSdEy
o0 00E‘EL ZL e 0% "BTE'67 9L L8L'S 09186 ‘€2 00°008'€L SHANHART TYIOL
06T00EEL ZLTZE 07 "BIE‘6F 9L LBL'G 09186 €2 00°0GE'EL 000 2deqg TRIOL
G0 00E ‘gL ZL 2E OF"8TE’'6F 9.°L8L"S 09186 °cE 00 00g'EL 15 I0¥ - siuead 1elg 000 9¥5-000-£02
ao0 3dea
SonUsIAIT
anngd LIFAELS TY¥I0T - £0¢& pung
Laoand aasn (WIQNGY) FEON (8DEd) HONI (FHEONEY) WA0N Laodnd JHdNIWT NOILILITEDSHQ dIFHAN 1D
TYNTSTHO I9ad % AINTTYE €Z/T€/0T HINOW zz0zZ/1€/01T £Z-2Z02
£c—ecic HTITITIVAY HOd ALIAILOV HONYTYd QLA
ZZ0Z/TE/0T ONIONE gOI¥Ed e )
88§ 1Iosn
TT/9 tobeg LNAWHDEYd 40 ALID ¥Cd THOdTd TENITANHAXE ANY IONEATT Wd $Z:20 ZZ0Z/L1/71T



(007526 “2E) LG ¥T {PE"STC " TF) 9L E09E ¥6°060°'8 (00-526'28) SHYNLIIONTEAKE 3 SHOANEARY A0 LIN

007522901 96T FETFEEC'06 0o"r81‘E 99°068'GT 00°522°90T SHUNLIANAAKA TYIOL

00°00g'EL zL ZE 0% 8TE‘6F 9L"LBL'S 09°186°¢cz 007 00£°€L SHANNAATT TYIOL

IANNA LEEELS TEO0T — €07 pung

00°82Z 90T 961 FEFEC06 00°%8T'€E 95068 6T 00522201 SHENLIANTIXE TYLOL

00°G96 22 A A PRT08T ‘22 187281 98" 8L 00°596°¢c UOTIRILSTUTWPY - Z§% 1dea 1Biol

007000702 00°0 0000002 oo-0 [A1 0] 00°000°02 PESUISAQ BSATIBRIJISTUTUPY 0A0°0%6-268F-€0C

0052 09°€g¢ 0T 6T [A 06°9 00°58¢ B8IBRDTESN 000" Z2L-28F-€02

00°GT 0070 00°ST 00670 00°0 00°ST uoTiesusdwo) S,IDHION 000°0ZL-Z8P~E0C

00°529 S9°¢ZE £V E8F Zr°%e LS TFT 005282 ucteusdg 000 8TL-28%-£02

00°0¢9 000 00709 0070 0o0-0 00708 DTATIINPI0 SDURINSUT TOQ'STL-Z8F-£0C

007063 §Z'0¢ 6ETESH 9T 6¥% 197961 00°0%9 IoURLINSUT 2ITT/TeITdsoH 000°9TL-Z8¥-€07

00°00T 6162 18- %L 085 61762 00°00T AjTanoeg TeToCs 000°STL-Z8¥—€0T

saInjtpuadzy

ANNA IEMLS TYO0T — £02 pund

La9and agsn (WHONEY) TWMON (d429d)} ¥ONI (WFONGY) WHON LAD0Nd dFANIHY HOTLATADSEA JAGHAN TD
TYNIDIHO I2ag g HONYIVI ZZ/15/0T HINOH TTOZ/TE/OT £2-2202Z

£z-zz02 ATIYIIVAY dod ALIATILDY AONYTYE dLA

Zg0¢/TE/0T ONTANT QOTHIA JusiyIed f8d

gQo 1assq

TT/L 1obeg LNAWHDEYYd 40 ALID ¥Cd L0dTd T¥NLIANAAXT ONY HONHAYY Wd 62:20 ZZ0Z/LT/T1T



00" FST'TITT 09°6%e (04°%82°99T) 0L"18BZ'9.LZ 0L 8ED 'LLE 00°FST'TIT STUNITANEAXE 3 SHANIATE IO IEN

00°9%1 7881 LSO 00" T80“LBT 00°0 00°G920°1 00°97%T ‘88T SEAALIANIdXE TYLOL

00°00E‘66¢ 50°€6 0£°96L 702 0L"TBEZ'9LZ 0L°£05'8LZ 00°00£7662 SHANTATA TYLOL

UUEOEQOHMKPQHUWM ﬂH&ﬂMDBOHm —_ HDN pung

00°%¥T ‘881 LGS0 00°T80“L8T 000 00°590°'T DO"9FT 88T SEMNLIANIAXE TIIOL

00"SPT 88T L5°0 00°T180‘L8T 00°0 00°590°T 00°9%T788T 000 3deg Te3OlL

00"E€15°6 0070 00"E16‘6 0070 000 00°£1576 ssusdxy 1s3I83UT 000°9566-000-152Z

00°€€%“8k 00°0 00°£€9'8¥% 00°0 0070 00°€£9 8% TedTouTig—-IuswaITyayd 3920 000°166-000-152

00"000“0€ET 00°0 00"000"0ET 00°0 000 00000 ‘0ET PEIUIBAD SATIRIJSTUTUPY 000°096-000-152

ooto 007001 {(00°590°1) 000 00°G90°T 00°0 TAJREG TenI0BIUOD/TRUCTSS8I0Id 000°008-000-152

000 3daa

S8INITpusdxEy

00'00€ ‘662 S0°£6 0E"96L°0Z 0L"TBZ‘9LEZ 0L°g0c'8Le 00" 00E ‘6672 SHNNTASYY TYIOL

00 00% ‘662 GO €6 0€£°96L°02 0.°182’9L2 0L"E0878LT 00" 00£’66%2 000 3deg TRaOL

000 00°00T (00-zzZZ'2) 00°¢ 00°zzz‘zg 000 STIOQURT TS TH 000°%69-000-TGZ

00°00£766¢2 1€°26 0€°8T0°¢€z 0L°T82°9L2 0L°182°9LT 00 00E ‘56€ snuaASd XB 000 %0%-000~TSZ

000 3dea

Sonudansy

JuswdoTsAlpPayY PI2TIUMOIG - TIGZ pund

hcialeful=: aisn {WAONEY) WHMON (do|d) "goNT {FAONEY) HEON 1LA90Nd JHINARY NOILATYDSHA WIENON 19
TYNIDIHO 19049 % AINYTHL Z2/TE€/0T HINOW 2Z0Z/1E/OT £2-7¢02

£z-z20Z ATV IIVAY W04 ALIAILDY HONYTVE dLX

11/8 rabeg

Z20Z/T£/0T ONIANH U0IdEd

LNAWHDYEYd 0 ALID ¥Od L¥O4dEY HYONLIANEdXA ANY FINNITATS

auswysaed dd
S86 +Ios()

Wd S¢:20 220e/L1/1T



00°0 81" 1T (€£-8687'GET) 00°0 (L3'€60 LT} {00 256 '2S8T) STINLIANEAXE % SAANIATS J0 LAN

00°0 20°€T 00°Z56°2ET 000 00°000 0T 007266 ‘25T STMALIANAJIXT TYLOL

00°0 00°00T (€£7906°2) oo"C £€7906 T 000 SHNNIATY TYIOL

ipung jueI) suTnwtis - 587 pund

00°0 80°€T 00" ZG6'ZET 0070 00 000 0€ 007256 °Z5T SEANITANEANE TYLOL

00°0 80°€T 00°2S672ET 0070 00°000"'0¢ 00°ZS6 25T 000 3deg Te3Oq

000 0T-52¢ (00°8F8‘E1) 00°0 007000702 00-2st’9 PUnE I2Yl0 03 I9FSURI] 000°666-000-582

00°0 0070 00°008'9%T 00°0 000 Q0°008 9¥%T ‘ales TEOJDRIZUOD/TRUCTSS8IoAd 000°008-000-58%2

000 3dea

gainitpusdxy

0o"o 00°00T (££°906°2) 00°0 £E°906°Z 000 SHONIARY TYIOL

0070 00001 (££7906°2) 0G0 £€£7906°T 00°0 000 3dsd TRIOL

000 00°00T (£€£790672) 00°0 £E£7906°C 000 STICOURT (SIS TH 000" %69-000-58Z

000 3adsq

SonusaDsyg

pPuUnd JUBID SNTOWTIE - GRZ PUNLI

LESHANG amsn {FMONEV) WHON {90ma) 9oNI (WIONEY) WION IA20NE CAININY NOTIATA3SEA AAFHAN 'TD
TYNIOTAQ I9ad % AONYIVH 2¢/TE/0T HINOW ZZ0Z/TE/0T £2-22Z0T

£2-220¢ EIIYIIVAY b0d ALIAIIDY HONYTIYY QLX

11/6 rebeq

LNAWHOEYd AC ALID Y04 I¥0ddd HHOLIANIAXT aNY IONTIATI

2c0c/TE/0T DONIANT qOT¥dEd

JjusuyoIed gd
m.mm H,HOWD
WA S2:20 ZC0Z/LT/T1T



00°0 00700T (00 06Z°'02) (00°8L) 00062702 0070 STANITANIAXT 3 SANNIATI J0 LAN

00°000°s 05°1 00°5z6'% 00" 6L n0-SL 00°000°S STUINITANAIXT TYLOL

00°000"S 0£°LO0OF (00-"59€°ST) 00°0 00°6%¢ ‘02 006 000’6 SUONZAFEY TYLOL
pund TeTICUWSK €,UrIal8A — TOF PURI

00°000°S 06T 00°6Z26 ‘¥ 0064 00°5L 00'000’s STINLIANIIXT TELOL
00°0007°s 05°T 00°5Z6°F 00" 5L 00" 6L - D0To00’s 000 adeg TeaOL
00°000°¢ 000 Qo o000‘s 000 co°o 00°000°S SNOSUBRT 928 TH 000" 956-000-T0%
0070 0000t {00°SL) 00 &L 00°GL 000 s3TTddng svurusluUTEH 3 artedsy 000" SLL-000-TO0F
000 3dea

ssan)Tpuadxy

00°000°s 0£° L0V (00-59£°6T) 00" 0 Q0" 58€ ‘02 00°000°S SANNEATT TYLOL
00°000°S 0€°L0%  (00°G9E°GT) 00°0 00°59€£0¢ 00°000°s 000 2dsa tezog
00'0 00°00T (00" P0Z°0Z} 00" 0 00-%0zZ 0T 0070 SNO2UPTTIDSTH 000" $69-000-T0F
00 000°'s AR 00" 6ER'E 0070 00" T9T 00°000°% anuaasy TRITdRD PeINgTIUoD 000" %L9-000-TOF
: 000 3dsq

sanusaADyd

pung TETICWSH §,UrIHIDA — [0F DPUNI

LEDINT aHasn (FMONAY) WION (dD0Ma) ¥INI {FHONTY) WION 139009 THAONENY NOILATHOSHa VYEIHRON TD
TENIONIEO 2209 3 HONYTYL ZZ/TE/0T HINOW ce0e/18/0T £6-2202
£g—zege HIAVIIVAY H0d ALIAILOY HONYIYd dLA
ZZ0Z/TE/0T DNIONT QOIddAd JusiyDaed 29d
555 fIesn

/1 :obeg LNHWHDEIYd 40 ALID dOd IMOdTd JTAOLTIANTAXT NV ANNTATT WY 9%:60 2202/81/11



00°ST0‘9¢ 66 CLY (90°56Z'€H9) 64L°LOL'S0Z 90°0TS'ZLS {00°88L7021T) SHMALIQNEIXT % SEANIATY A0 IEN
00 s8p’‘LEz’E L0 ZF 80°GEL'F8E’T TE9TT LIE Z6 TOL’'S00°T 00" LET ‘06E’'Z SN TTIV - STMALIGNIINA TYIOL
007 005°€92°¢C S 69 Z0 0P ‘189 0T ¥Z8B°'22ZS 86 TTIZ'8LG T 00 gs9’69z’'e SANNA TTY - SHANTATY TYLOL
00 00z'e 6% LFE 8G 6TE T (FL°TEO0'BT} (8G"6TT TT) 00°002°‘¢ SHYNEIONIAXE ¥ SANNIARY A0 IEAN
00°00L7G¥%T 16°LS ZET959 719 VLTTEQ ST 89°€%0°¢S8 00°00L'9FT SETANITANIAXT THIOL
007006 ‘6FT TE6Y 06 SL6“SL 000 0T'¥Z6 ‘EL 00 006 '6FT SANNIATY TYIOL
CONNA IEMAS - (065 pung
007 00L9FT LET LS ZE*959 19 PLTTEQ ‘BT 89 °€70758 00°00L'9%T SHMALIANAIXH TYLOL
00 00L 9FT L6 LS ZE°959°19 PLTTEO0'8T 89°cr0’S8 00 00L 9%T 000 3dsg TBl0L
00' 00T FT 000 00" 00T‘FT 00" 0 000 00°00T'%T uotietTosadaq 000" 896-000-065
00°00070% 000 00°000°0% 000 000 00°0000F pPeRaUISAQ SATIEIISTUTIPY 000°096-000-065
00°000°0T 000 007000701 60" 90 000 0O 000 0T SI0]0BIU0D JUTER 3 ITedsy 000" 0£6-000-065
00°00€‘2 60°9¢ 06°69%F T 0070 01°0¢£8 00" QoE’e SSTITTTIIL 000 0Z6-000-065
007009 ‘0T G6 EL 00" T9L‘Z 000 00"6E8 7L 00009 70T SpPUOY ® SOUBINSUT Q000 0T6-000-065
007009 goto 00" 00§ 000 000 00° 008 Te1uSd WAoITUf 000°518-000-065
00 000'se 67092  {08°2TZT'0F) 0§ 0LE'ST 08 2ZT1’'59 00° 000762 TAZSS TENIOBIJUCD/ [RPUCTSEDI0IG 000 008-000-065
00°00E £6° L2 ze91e FT°6T 8L7€8 00°00¢ SIPDTPOH 000" ZZL-000-06%
00008 00°0 00008 00°0 000 00" 005 uoTjesusdwo) s,I8}I0N 000" 0ZL~000-06%
00 00£°6 82z 0L 8Te L 9£°Z0% 0E"T80'2 00" 00E6 uoTsuad 000" 8TL-000-06%
00004 000 00 00L 00°0 000 00 00L 2TYTIONPad SOURINSUT T00 2TL-000-06%
00700076 £0° 1€ L7029 81869 £L°76L°T 00°000°6 soURINSUI SITT/TeaTdson 000°3TL-000-065
00°00F°T 656752 TBTT¥O T Z8° 18 61" 85¢ 00°00F ‘T AjTanoeg TeToog 000 GTL-000-066G
00000 1862 ZZ V90 LT FLT6GE’T 8L°6£6°5 00°000°EZ swr TInd - TToxAzd 000" Z0L-000-06G
000 3deq
ssanlTpusdxy
007006 ‘6%1 ZET 6T 06°GLE 6L 000 0T FZ6 €L 007006 “5FT SAONTATG TELOL
00°006‘6FT TE6F 06°GL67GL 00°0 01" %26 'EL 007006 ‘6% T 000 pmmm.ﬁmpog
06006 'T 000 00°006°T 000 000 00°006°T SIUSWISSAUL UG 188I873UT 000" F99-000-065
00 000 '8FT S6'6F 06 GLO VL 000 0T ¥Z6‘EL 00000 “8FT S30TAIBE IDMBG 000 °929-000-065
000 3dag
sanusasy
aNnd YEMIS - 06§ pund
LA2dandg adasn (WIONEY) WHON (40Ea) 9oNIT (FTEONEY) WION LHDANd THANHRY NOTLATHOSEA HAFHAN T2
TYNTOTHO Ioad % AONYTEL Z¢/TE/OT HINOHW ZZ0Z/TE/0T £Z-Z202
€¢-2¢Z02 HTAYTITIYAY H0d ALIAILOV HONYIVd LA
7Z0Z/TE/0T SNIANE QOINAd ausmLard da
wmm. ",Hmﬂ.D
IT/T1 tabeg INHHHIYYd 40 ALID ¥0d I¥OdAY FUNLIANIAXT aNY HZANIATS W& G220 CZ0T/LT/TT



KALAMAZQO AREA TRANSPORTATION STUDY

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE MEETING
MINUTES OCTORER 13, 2022 - 9:30 A.M.

CALL TO ORDER

The October 13, 2022 Technical Committee Meeting was called to order at 9:30 a.m. at Kalamazoo

Metro, by Chair Minkus.

ROLL CALL

Meeting attendance was recorded on the sign-in sheet. Introductions were made by all present.

MEMBERS PRESENT

Kerry DenBraber
Zach DuMont
Josh Grab
Kendra Gwin
Robert Henderson
Jeff Heppler

Joel Hoort

Anna Horner
Anthony Ladd
John Lovely

Jeff Mais

Ryan Minkus, Chair
Jesse Okeley
Ryan Russell
Kathy Schultz
Paul Sotherland
Nancy Steddard
Greg Viietstra
Luke Walters
George Waring
Mark Worden

OTHERS PRESENT

Sean Beckman
Phil Doorlag
Scott Fitzgerald
Ryan Gladding
Jamie Harmon
Larry Humme!
Martin Janssen
Megan Mickelson

Michigan Department of Transportation, Transportation Service Center

City of Kalamazoo

Michigan Department of Transportation, Region
City of Partage

Van Buren Public Transit

Village of Augusta

Van Buren County Road Commission

Oshtemo Township

City of Kalamazoo

Texas Township

City of Portage

Road Commission of Kalamazoo County

City of Kalamazoo

Village of Schooleraft

Central County Transpertation Authority

KATS Citizens Advisory Committee

City of Parchment

Kalamazoo County Transportation Authority
Michigan Department of Transportation, Statewide Planning
City of Kalamazoc

Road Commission of Kalamazoo County

ROWE

Wighiman & Assoclates

Meatro

Michigan Department of Transportation, SUTA

City of Portage

Fleis & VandenBrink

Central/Kalamazoo County Transportation Authority
Kalamazoo Area Transporiation Study

TC Minutes 10/13/22 Page 1 of 4



Elizabeth Rumick Kalamazoo Area Transporfation Study
Steve Stepek, AICP Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study
Ali Townsend Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study

CHANGES OR ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA
There were no changes or additions 1o the agenda.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Heppler moved, and it was duly seconded by Worden, “to approve the agenda of the October 13,
2022 Technical Committee Meeting.” MOTION CARRIED.

MINUTES FROM THE SEPTEMBER 8, 2022 MEETING

Heppler moved, and it was duly seconded by Vletstra, “to approve the minutes from the
September 8, 2022 Technical Committee Meeting.” MOTION CARRIED.

POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT

Stepek reported on behalf of the Policy Committee that met on September 28, 2022. Transpertation
Improvement Program Amendments, and internal peolicies were approved. Road construction was
discussad, particularly how it has impacted the on-time performance of Metro bus routes. Heppler
asked If problems getfing materials such as concrete and steel for projects was discussed. Stepek
responded agencies have pointed out that issue which has resulted in delays. Minkus added that
Locat Agency Planning reported expansion of the Buy-America campaign is anticipated which may
further impact project delays.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

No citizens comments were made.
FY 2023-2026 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM AMENDMENTS

Stepek stated the amendments are included in the meeting packet. The short listincludes Michigan
Department of Transportation regionwide pavement marking and a City of Kalamazoo Scuth
Woestnedge Avenue roadway rehabilitation project.

Schultz moved, and it was duly seconded by Heppler, “to approve the FY 2023-2026
Transportation Improvement Program Amendments.” MOTION CARRIED.

2023 SAFETY PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Stepek stated the annual safety performance newsletter provided by the Michigan Department of
Transportation along with the statewide performance measures are included in packet. In the past,
Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study (KATS) has chosen to adopt the statewide performance
measures, These must be adopted every calendar year, There are minor changes from last year,
KATS staff recommends continuing the process of adaoption of the slatlewide measures. Not included
in the packet, but passed around, are the trends and safety data for our local Metropolitan Planning
QOrganization region.

Heppler moved, and it was duly seconded by Horner, “fo approve the 2023 Safety Performance
Measures and for the Chair fo sign the Resolution on behalf of the Commiftee.” MOTION
CARRIED,

2023 TECHNICAL COMMITTEE MEETING SCHEDULE

TC Minutes 10/13/22 Page 2 of 4



Stepek stated the proposed calendar year 2023 meeting schedule is enclosed in the meeting
materials. It foilows the traditional schedule of meeting the second Thursday of each month with a
start time of 9:30 a.m. Schultz began the discussion that meetings will be cancelled if the agenda will
be light or there are no action items. Volunteers are welceme to suggest or make meeting
presentations on topics the entire group can benefit from. Stepek reminded attendees that the 2023
meeting locaticn may be changed due to the scheduled Ransom Street construction project.

Gwin moved, and It was duly seconded by Stoddard, “to approve the 2023 Technical Committee
Meeling Schedule.” MOTION CARRIED,

FY 2023 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM AMENDMENT SCHEDULE

Stepek stated the proposet! calendar year 2023 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP}
Amendment schedule Is enclosed in the meeting materials. It continues the same every other month
schedule that has been used In the past. This setves as a reminder to submit your TIP Amendments
to Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study.

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION UPDATES

Schultz anncunced Metro's Comprehensive Operations Analysis {COA) is winding down. Attendees
are welcome to attend the COA presentation with the consultant scheduled for the December 12,
2022 11:30 a.m. Central County Transportation Authority/Kalamazoo County Transportation Autharity
Board mesting. Two public mestings will be held that same week along with additional stakeholder
meetings. Impactful but positive changes are anticipated for bus routes and service areas, Metro
plans to gradually phase-in any changes in an effort to strive for a smooth transition, Pass along any
opportunities for Metro to discuss changes with the community to Schultz, Metro will be participating
in the City of Portage Senior Center public apen house on November 3, 2022, 2023 construction
projects that will impact bus routes are being discussed, Schultz intreduced Scott Fitzgerald as the
new Metro Transit Pianner and a point of contact for projects and any questions. Cn behalf of the
committee, Minkus welcomed Fitzgerald.

STATUS REPORTS
ROADS-

Stoddard reported the City of Parchment is working with Traffic Engineer Brian Burlingham cn trend
studies to improve concerns caused by truck traffic and to improve stop sign placement at
intersections.

Heppler stated planning of the Village of Augusta 2024 water and bridge projects has begun. In
partnership with the Road Commission of Kalamazoo County, 2023 chip seal projects are being
planned. As a member of the Opioid Board, Heppler announced that Metro may be contacted to
determine how to assist people with transportation to rehabilitation and treatment facilities.

Ladd announced alf City of Kalamazoo projects are wrapping up for the year. The city is making
preparations to collect leaves and plow snow. Planning for next year projects has begun.

Harmon reported the City of Portage received grade inspection packages. All 2023 federally funded
projects have been submitted and are awaiting final bid letting. The Portage Road and Romence
Road 2024 projects were recently awarded engineering contracts. Planning for the local streets
program for 2023 is underway.

Gladding, Michigan Department of Transportation Transportation Planner, re-introduced himself and
his role of providing assistance for any travel demand model issues or questions.

Minkus. reported the Road Commission of Kalamazoc County {RCKC) projects in the October bid
letting, 12" Street and 24™ Strest, are 9.4 percent ($161,000) and 7.8 percent ($178.000) over
budget, respectively. There are projects upcoming in the December and January lettings. Work

TC Minutes 10/13/22 Page 3 of 4



continues on the 2023 RCKC budget whose fiscal year aligns with the calendar year, Updated 2022
Kalamazoo County road maps were available at the meeting. Additional maps are also available,

DenBraber provided an update on the Michigan Department of Transportation -84 Portage Road
project. Work has begun on westbound 1-94. Opening of the westbound ramp at Sprinkle Road has
been delayed until at least October 28, 2022 due to material shortages,

LAND USE/PLANNING AND ZONING-

Walters announced that today is likely his last meeting as a representative for the Michigan
Department of Transpertation, Heather Boden was hired as the Kalamazoo Area Transportation
Study (KATS) Program Manager effactive October 31, 2022, Walters expressed pleasure serving as
Interim KATS Program Manager, on the commitiee, and partaking in coordination and cooperation of
the group. On behalf of the committee, Minkus thanked Walters for his participation.

Lovely stated the Texas Township Downtown Development Authority (DDA) met and discussed
potential benefits of Metro services in the area,
NEW BUSINESS

Stepek added Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study (KATS) closed the time sheet cutoff on
September 30, 2022, the end of KATS fiscal ysar. The required match was met. Continue to send in
time sheets which will go toward the next fiscal year. Harmon announced the local chapter of the
American Public Works Association preject of the year applications are out and due in early
November, Contact Harmon for more information.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

No citizens comments were made.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 9:57 a.m.

Approved 11/10/22 (er}

The next meefing of the Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study Technical Commiftee will be held on
Thursday, November 10, 2022 af 9:30 a.m.

TC Minutes 10/13/22 Page 4 of 4




RESOLUTION - LOCAL SUPPORT FOR DNR PROJECTS
Resolution 2022-09

WHEREAS, the Parchment City Commission supports the Department of Natural Resources’
(DNR) submission of an application titled, “Kindleberger Park Pathway Renewal Plan” to the
Spark Grant Program for re-paving of Park pathways, improving drainage, controlling erosion,
stabilizing the valley picnic shelters, and upgrading the electric grid in selected high-use areas
at Kindleberger Park; and,

WHEREAS, the location of the proposed project is within the jurisdiction of the City of
Parchment: and,

WHEREAS, the proposed project, if completed, will be a benefit to the community; and,

WHEREAS, with this resolution of support it is acknowledged that the Parchment City
Commission is not committing to any obligations; financial or otherwise.

NOW THEREFORE, BE |IT RESOLVED that Parchment City Commission hereby supports
submission of a Spark Grant Application for the Kindleberger Park Pathway Renewal Plan, by
the DNR.

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:
MOTION APPROVED.
| HEREBY CERTIFY, that the foregoing is a Resolution duly made and passed by
of at their regular meeting held on 20, at
p.m.in , with a quorum present.
Dated:

Shannon Stutz, Clerk




KALAMAZOO VALLEY INTERGOVERNMENTAL AMBULANCE AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made between the KALAMAZOO CHARTER TOWNSHIP,
ALAMO TOWNSHIP, COOPER CHARTER TOWNSHIP, the OSHTEMO CHARTER
TOWNSHIP, the CITY OF PARCHMENT, the CITY OF KALAMAZOO (hereinafter the
“Municipalities””) and Life EMS of Kalamazoo, Inc., a Michigan Corporation (hereinafter “Life
EMS™).

WHEREAS, in order to provide more responsive, reliable and cost-effective ambulance
and other emergency services, the Municipalities requested proposals for an intergovernmental
ambulance agreement, seeking a single provider for emergency services for their residents; and

WHEREAS, the Municipalities pursuant to the authority granted by 1951 Public Act 35,
as amended (being MCL 124.1 et seq.) and 2011 Public Act 258 (being MCL 124.111 et seq.)
are interested in sharing oversight responsibilities for the provision of these services; and

WHEREAS, Life EMS has presented a signed proposal in response to the request for
proposals (RFP) prepared by the Municipalities that fully addresses all issues related to the
provision of and payment for ambulance and other emergency services; and

WHEREAS, the Municipalities wish to enter into an Agreement with Life EMS, and
have designated the proposed agreement as the Kalamazoo Valley Intergovernmental Ambulance
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Municipalities and Life EMS wish to supplement the proposal signed
by Life EMS in response to the request for proposals in order to create a binding agreement that
describes the obligations and responsibilities that the Municipalities have to each other, and more
fully details the obligations and responsibilities of Life EMS to the Municipalities, both
collectively and as individual governmental entities.

IT IS NOW THEREFORE AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1. This Agreement as amended to reflect changes in the; EMS response protocol as
adopted by Kalamazoo County Medical Control Authority (KCMCA), required paramedic
staffing levels and the ambulance rates (Exhibit A). The RFP signed by Life EMS as submitted
via correspondence dated May 29, 2014 from Mark Meijer, President, Life EMS, to Terry Emig,
Chief, Cooper Charter Township Fire Department, constitute a single Agreement that shall be
known as the Kalamazoo Valley Intergovernmental Ambulance Agreement (KVIAA).

2. All references to the Kalamazoo Valley Intergovernmental Ambulance
Agreement and to the local governmental entities in the RFP submitted and signed by Life EMS
shall be deemed to refer to all municipalities that are a party to this Agreement, including any
other municipality who becomes a party to the Agreement subsequent to the date of its
execution, as further described below.



3. Any party to this Agreement, including Life EMS, may terminate its participation
by providing 180 days written notice to all other parties at any time after the initial four-year
term of this Agreement has expired. This notice, and all other notices under this Agreement,
shall be sent to the following persons:

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF COOPER: Township Supervisor
1590 West ‘D’ Avenue
Kalamazoo, MI 49009

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF KALAMAZOO Township Supervisor
1720 Riverview
Kalamazoo, MI 49004

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF OSHTEMO: Township Supervisor
7275 W. Main St.
Kalamazoo, MI 49009

CITY OF PARCHMENT: Office of the City Manager
650 S. Riverview
Parchment, MI 49004

CITY OF KALAMAZOQOO: Office of the City Manager
241 W. South St.
Kalamazoo, MI 49007

TOWNSHIP OF ALAMO Township Supervisor
7901 North 6™ Street
Kalamazoo, MI 49009
LIFE EMS LIFE EMS
Mark Meijer

517 W. North St.
Kalamazoo, MI 49007

4. Approval must be obtained from each municipality that is a signatory to this
Agreement and from Life EMS before any other governmental unit can become a party to this
Agreement. Any municipality that becomes a party to this Agreement after its effective date
shall be an equal partner and shall have the same status under its terms as those municipalities
that are initial signatories,

5. Any modification in the terms of this Agreement, including fees, must be
approved by Life EMS and by three-fourths of the municipalities who are at that time a party to
this Agreement.

6. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and the RFP signed by Life
EMS, the terms of this Agreement shall control.



7. It is understood and agreed that the KVIAA oversight Board, as referenced in the
RFP, is an oversight body only, and its members have no authority to bind any party to this
Agreement.

8. The KVIAA Oversight Board has the authority to make recommendations to the
Municipalities then participating in this Agreement that a default be declared, as provided for in
the RFP. A formal notice of default shall be sent to Life EMS if approved by the appropriate
official or body of at least three-fourths of the Municipalities that are parties to this Agreement at
that time.

9. Any local ordinance referenced in the RFP signed by Life EMS that is specific to
any one municipality shall be applicable only to that municipality, and shall not be in any way
binding upon the other Municipalities that are a party to this Agreement.

10. Because response times to calls for the services provided by Life EMS is a critical
component of this Agreement, the performance measures and penalties for failure to meet those
measures are set forth in Exhibit A to this Agreement.

11. This Agreement may be executed in six or more counterparts, cach of which shall be deemed
to be an original when signed by the duly authorized representative of any party. While each

such document shall be deemed to be an original, all such documents together shall constitute
one and the same Agreement.

KALAMAZOO CHARTER TOWNSHIP

Date: By:

Its:

COOPER CHARTER TOWNSHIP

Date: By:

Its:

OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP

Date: By:

Its:




Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

CITY OF PARCHMENT

By:

Its:

CITY OF KALAMAZOQO

By:

Its:

ALAMO TOWNSHIP

By:

Its:

LIFE EMS OF KALAMAZOO, INC.

By:

Its:




2020 Exhibit A to the
Kalamazoo Valley Intergovernmental Ambulance Agreement

Calculation, Notification, and Distribution of Penalties and Payments from KVIAA Contract

Response Times: Penalties and breeches are based on Kalamazoo County Medical Control
Authority (KCMCA) response time directives, Changes may be implemented by a joint
recommendation from KCMCA, the KVIAA oversight board, and the contracted agency. The
legacy KCMCA response time standards are listed below for reference.

¢ The time the responding unit is notified will be used to evaluate the response time interval.

e The Advanced Life Support Unit respanse time target begins upon the time the unit is notified by the EMD.

*  The Advanced Life Support Unit response time target ends upon arrival of the Advanced Life Support Unit to the
physical address or staged location.

Emergency Medical Call Processing Time Targets:

f

D notifle to ‘
time unit notified

»  PSAP notified — Time that PSAP picks up the call

*  EMD notified — Time that EMD picks up the call

*  Unit notified — Time that tha EMD assigns a call to an ambulance
s *Forcalls initially received by EMD

Penalties and Breaches: The KVIAA contract describes the following penalties and breeches.
A. Per call penalty Zone 1 and Zone 2:

a. $15 for each Priority | or | response exceeding KCMCA standards or turned over to a
non-contracted agency.

B. Breaches Zone 1:
a. Minor:
i. Priority 1 $350.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 90% in any
given calendar month within a range of 85%-89%.
ii.  Priority Il $125.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 90% in any
given calendar month period within a range of 85%-89%.




b. Major:
i. Priority | $500.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 85% in any
given calendar month.
ii. Priority Il $300.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 85% in any
given calendar month.

C. Breaches Zone 2:
a. Minor:
i.  Priority 1 $350.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 90% in any
given calendar guarter within a range of 85%-89%.
ii. Priority 11 $125.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 90% in any
given calendar year within a range of 85-89%.
b. Major:
i Priority 1 $500.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 85% in any
given calendar quarter.
ii. Priority 11 $300.00 for each aggregate percentage point below 85% in any
given calendar year.

IV.  Response Zones: The revised response zones have been changes from Metropolitan and Non-
Metropolitan to Zone 1 and Zone 2. The new KVIAA zones are based upon recommendations
from KCMCA and are subject to change by a joint recommendation among the KVIAA oversight
board, KCMCA, and the contracted provider. The current 2018 accepted response zones are:

City of Galeshurg Alamo Towship

City of Kalamazoo Brady Township

City of Parchment Charleston Township

City of Portage Climax Township (and Village of Climax)
Comstock Township Cooper Township {D Avenue and North)
Cooper Township (D Avenue and South) Pavilion Township

Kalamazoo Township Prairie Ronde Township

Oshtemo Township Richland Township (and Village of Richland}
Schoolcraft Township (W Avenue and North}  Ross Township

Texas Township Schoolcraft Township (W Avenue and South)
Village of Schoolcraft Village of Augusta

Village of Vicksburg Wakeshma Township

V.  Calculation of Penalties:
A. Per call penalties: Shall be calculated for priority 1 —Zone 1, and Zone 2 calls, and priority 2
Zone 1 and Zone 2 calls as described in the following example:

Total Pricrity 1 Requests for Zone 1 Jurisdiction “x” 100
Completed responses that met 10 minutes 0 seconds 86
Responses that exceeded 10 minutes 0 seconds 12
Calls turned over to non-contracted agency 2

6



Total calls with response delay or turn over 14

Number of calls subject to $15 per call assessment 14
Monthly per call assessment paid to jurisdiction “x” $210.00
B. Breach penalties: Shall be calculated for priority 1 and 2 - Zone 1 and Zone 2 based on
aggregate data from a fractile report over time intervals noted in section II1B and IIC of this
document. KVIAA responses of the same priority from all jurisdictions will be combined
together to determine an overall percentage of compliance as demonstrated below:
Aggregate ; ! : ! : i i i ; ]
Zone 1
Priority 1 g
- Mutual |Requested
0-2 Min f2-4 Min [4-6 Min {&-8 Min [8-10 Min |10-12 Min |12-14 Min |14-16 Min [16-18 Min Aid  |Exceptions TOTAL Compliant
20 100 | 205 | 155 20 R 2 510 58%
Threshold S0%
Priority 2
Mutual {Requested
0-2 Min |2-4 Min |4-6 Min |6-8 Min |8-10 Min [10-12 Min |12-14 Min Ald  |Exceptions TOTAL [Compliant
20 30 50 55 30 15 4 Sy 260 94%
! {Threshold 90%
Zone 2
i
Priority 1 i
Requested
0-2 Min [2-4 Min [4-6 Min {6-8 Min |8-10 Min [10-12 Min |12-14 Min Exceptions TOTAL |Compliant
0 0 0 0 4 5 7 . 21 81%
Threshold 9%
Priority 2
Mutual |Requested
0-2 Min |2-4 Min |4-6 Min [6-8 Min [8-10 Min |10-12 Min [12-14 Min |14-16 Min |16-18 Min |18-20 Min Aid  |Exceptions TOTAL Compliant
0 0 0 0 4 8 6 6 [Eaminaang 27 89%
i iThreshold 90%
C. Calculating of Percentage Performance: Shall be rounded up or down to the nearest whole
percentage point utilizing conventional methods. For the example above:
a. Priority 1 —Zone 1: 510 (responses that met standard) / 510 (total responses
including mutual aid requests) = 98.039. This number is rounded down to 98%
compliance.
b. Priority 1—Zone 2: 17 (responses that met standard) / 21 {total responses including
mutual aid requests) = 80.952. This number is rounded up to 81%.
D. Exemptions: The KVIAA and contracted agency recognize that there are instances where

response delays are unavoidable. In such cases an exemption will be requested by the
contracted agency with supporting documentation and presented to the KVIAA oversight
board at the regular operations summary meetings. Approved exemptions will NOT count
against the contracted agency in the calculation of response time performance or penalties.
Acceptable exemption examples include the following:

a. Severe weather delay

b. Construction delay

c. Multiple calls same time frame same, jurisdiction, not aliowing for system recovery

7



d. System overload that overwhelms planned and full staffing
e. Mass Casualty Incidents (MCI)
f.  Diversion to higher priority call

VI, Communication of Penalties and Distribution of Payment:

A,

Penalties will be evaluated by the contractor on a quarterly/yearly basis (section lll) utilizing
an aggregate fractile report to determine total penalty amounts.

A quarterly email containing a summary of per call penalties listed by KVIAA jurisdiction and
any breaches in service will be sent ahead of payment distribution by the contracted agency
to the appointed board representative from each municipality and the City of Kalamazoo
Purchasing Manager. ,

The contractor shall distribute payment in the form of a single check for the total amount of
all applicable penalties for the quarter made payable to the City of Kalamazoo and directed
to the City of Kalamazoo Public Safety Department, Attention: Assistant Chief Tibbets {or his
successor} at 150 E. Crosstown Parkway, Ste. A, Kalamazoo, M| 49007,

The summary and payment will be sent no later than 90 days from the close of the reported
on quarter.

The Kalamazoo Public Safety Department Assistant Chief, or their designee, will direct per
call penalty amounts to specified accounts to the KVIAA jurisdiction in which they occurred.
Breach penalties will be directed at the discretion of the KVIAA oversight board by the
Kalamazoo Public Safety Department Assistant Chief or their designee.

Paramedic Staffing {Section Ill, Subsection B, paragraph 6 of RFP}

The KVIAA participating local governments believe that two, well-qualified paramedics

best serve critical patients. Due to the current national shortage of paramedics, the KVIAA
participating local governments agree to allow for up to 40% of scheduled unit hours to be
staffed with a single, highly experienced and qualified paramedic and an EMT. Therefore, the
Contractor shall assure that at least 60% of all scheduled unit hours be staffed by two
paramedics. The excepticn from the previously agreed upon unit hour staffing of 70%
paramedic, 30% EMT shall be valid for the contract renewal period of November 1, 2022-
October 31, 2024. Proof of staffing the configuration may be requested and/or audited by
KVIAA during periodic reporting.




Life EMS Ambulance Summary for new Kalamazoo County Fee Schedule
Effective January 1, 2020

Life EMS Ambulance is proposing new service delivery rates (as noted below) for both transport and
non-transport pre-hospital work with a target implementation date of Jan 1, 2020. There are three
primary driving forces guiding the rate adjustments which include the rising costs to do business
{payroll, fuel, supplies, health insurance, etc), adjustments to private insurance company ambulance
reimbursement rates (BCBS, BCN, Priority Health, Etc.) and future work / reimbursement models
associated with ET3 and Tandem 365 (both detailed below). Life EMS believes our ambulance rates are
industry competitive and cost effective, reflecting appropriate and modest adjustments that will allow
us to remain responsive to the needs of our communities.

1. Emergency Triage, Treat and Transport (ET3) is a voluntary, five year model, Pilot program
proposed by the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Innovations (CMMI) that will provide
ambulance companies the opportunity to receive some level of reimbursement for alternate
destination (non-emergency department) transports as well as non-traditional treat on scene /
hon—transport instances. The five-year payment model is intended to provide greater flexibility
to ambulance care teams to address emergency health care needs of Medicare Fee-For Service
(FFS) beneficiaries following a 911 call. Life EMS is providing a letter of interest to have both its
Central (Kent /Ottawa) and South {Kalamazoo / Allegan / Van Buren) operations participate in
the pilot program. Deliverables for the project include the formation of community
partnerships among Medicare-enrolled qualified health care providers that can offer alternative
destinations or telehealth services. Applications for the program must be received by
September 19, 2019,

2. Tandem 365 is a collaborative venture assisting hospitals, doctors, family members and
individuals in need of healthcare services not traditionally provided. A unique and on-going
special study through the State of Michigan Department of Health and Human Services, the
company (of which Life EMS is a part-owner} provides persons with little or no social support,
who are 55 and older, assistance in managing their medically complex health issues. Tandem'’s
goals are to decrease emergency room visits, decrease specialty / outpatient visits, deliver
comprehensive cost-effective care and improve the quality of life of program participants all
while reducing overall healthcare dollar expenditure with high system users. The organization
has current reimbursement partnerships with Priority Health and Blue Care Network, has been
in operation in Kent County for four years and has over 1,000 program participants. Life EMS is
planning to launch the Tandem 365 program in our Kalamazoo County market early fall, 2019.

While reimbursement for Both Tandem 365 and ET3 programs will be very different, their operational
structures are nearly parallel and complement each other well. This operational similarity will ensure a
common procedural knowledge base among both traditional pre-hospital EMS crews and specialized
Integrated Care Paramedics (ICP’s). We believe that both programs will allow Life EMS Ambulance to
remain an industry leader while providing the communities we serve with a unique and cost-effective
method to access healthcare resources well into the future.

9




Life E.M.S., Inc¢. — Kalamazoo Division

BASE RATES:

Prehospital Care and Transportation Rates Effective November 1, 2022

Non Emergency (No ALS services)

(PHYSICIAN AUTHORIZATION REQUIRED.)

ALS Non Emergency

(PHYSICIAN AUTHORIZATION REQUIRED.)

Emergency (No ALS services)

ALS-1 Emergency

ALS 2 Emergency

SCT

On Scene Treatment-NO TRANSPORT

ALS Assessment/No Transport

Lift Assist/Patient Assist/Extra Bariatric Personnel
Bariatric Service (in addition to standard base rate)
Special Equipment/Handling/Haz Mat

Treatment/Waiting Time After 30 Minutes
per 15 Minute Increments

Neo Non Emergency

Neo Emergency

$529.00

$829.00

$789.00
$949.00
$1,079.00
$1,149.00
$399.00
$499.00
$179.00
$599.00
$99.00 +

$59.00

$1,149.00

$1,149.00

Mileage (Divided by number of patients: Loaded miles only):

Mileage

10

$21.00/mile



